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Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited
Annual Financial Stalements for the year endad Dacembar 31, 2023

Directors’ Report

Tha cirectors sumit neir snnual report ogethar with the auditea firancial stalements:for tha year ended Decambar 31, 2023
1.  Principal activitlies

The prircipal sctivities of the company are that of providing autemated clesring, delivery and ssttlement faslives In respect of
transachions carmad oul ab the Marobl Ssturilzs Exchangs (NSE) and the holding of secdnbies: as poeminess on bahall ol
ImvEsions.

THgra have bean no matsrill chanyss to the naturs of the company's businsss from Ihe prior yesr.
2. Business review of financial results and aclivities

Tne annual financial statements have been preparsd n ascordance with Intemational Finanaial Reporting Standards and the
requirarmants of the Kenyan Companjas Act, 3015 The aceaunting polloes have besn applad consistantly comparad o (e
priar s, !

The company recordsd a net loss sher tax for the year sfded December 31, 2023 of KES (43,933 940) comparzd o net loss
after tmx af tha prior year of KES (107 373.281).

Company favenue gecraassd by 12 80% from KES 108 452 958 |n |k priot year [0 KES 171 308 942 far the year anded
Decamber 37, 2023

Company cash flows Lsed in oparating activitkes dscressed rom KES 33 872,877 In the prior year 0 KES 1,331 859 for tha
year anded Dacembar 31, 2023

In the year 2023, COSC achizved a nagative dperating profil a3 a2 regult of the reduction in revenues from tha varnabla incame
seqment. The reduction in equity frading fransactions levies is dus lo the continped forsign ingtitutional nvastor oulflows as
thay too Night from the emarging and frontisr markats on haighlzned global risks and bettsr ratums offsrsd on allsmative
‘assate classes loeally and In the deveioped markel ineluding the Uniled States and Europa Area {irade marketdriven intome)
pontinue to perform poorly and the delays m the mglameantation of the new initiaiives haye negatvaly affacted overall COSE
FEVB RS

2024 Qutloak

In the guast to ensure the provision of mare mvestment opoartunites: for chants, the Company has contimuously angagsd in
increasing its product base.  The year 2022 wlll =ze mare incoma streams from |PCs &t the Naimby Securities Exchange from
{he private sector and governmeant. implementation of registry services o listed and nosdistad eompanias, implamantation of
the cantralized resgistry Systam lor Sacops and approval of the new fee structurs for the existing inoome straams

The Company undaitook & stratsgic refocus procgss gimsd ol adepting strategy implemsntabion o currsnt ssongmic, market
and COSC conditions. The refocus sought to idenbly spenfic nigh-mpact arsas that COSC shoulg focus on pasec on the
lessans, successes. and challenges that Manageemen| has encountarad In the implementation of the current strategy,

In the shor term, Management has bean angaging key stakoholdars in the Sacch ecosysiem for the provision of cantralized
semvicas, engaging putential issuers of |isted and unfisled secudties for the provision of regisiy services, and sngaging
Unclairmed Financial Assats Aulhority to unlock the patastial of the geclared dermant dsnate.|

In tha medium tarm, the company will pursue the astablishment of a Ceniralized KYC servics in line with C0SC's mandale as
lha Deposilory, a3 wall a5 the CMA's 2023 — 2028 siatedic plan and tHa introductian of a Digltal Assel Accourl modsl that
wolld enable investors o hald mulliple assets under one account held at the GDSE In addivon, Managamant propases the
cantralization of investor data across squiies and unit frust products into a single digital registry

The Company continues m its cost reduction measures which hawe seen consolidation of ils aperations oft one floar {10E llear)
at Europa Towsrs and sublat the 110 Moo to reduce the renlel expenssa. pulting a fiesze an hirhg new stall shd efficantly
depioying our current stalt cormplement, and reducing ofner office ganeral maimtenance costs among gther afforts. The mpact
of thess measures conlinugs to biear fruit wilh the shserved reduction Ih stalf-releted costy, mntal expanszs, and ganeral Offics
maintanance cosis In the currént year, opatating and administrative cosis have bean reduced by 28 7% compared to las) year
and = further raduction is expaated n 2024,




Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited

Anmual Financial Statemants for the yesr anded Decamber 34, 2023
Directors' Report

Manzgemant confinues with ils high-lavel angsgamants with tha regulatr with he-support of (he Baard 1o sesx approval for
the various lees-related proposals: that ars cumently under review by the CMA Managemant secured market staksholders’
approval b a revisian of the Ospowtory lavy from KES 80 1o KES 150 with an ingreass o the cap from KES 1 Million ta 5
Million. Thi= was 3 crical step owards progressing ‘8 revision af this: levy o pariamen! for approval. We oxpect clear
implamentation Hreslinas for the rext ssps o Cudter 1 of 2024

The Company 5 of the view that the uncarnainties rslated o the reduction in &guity trading volumes cunently go not resullin a
matarial impacl thal may cast sanifican doutt on tha entity's abillly to contmie a3 a going concem as managenent wil
continuously axplors non-trading revanue lines whoss implementation comtinues in 2024,

3. Share caplfal

Thare have been no changes 1o the aullionzad o ssued share capilal dunng the year wnder revmewy,

4. Dividends

The board of directora do not recammaend the diclsration of a dividend for the year ended Dacambar 31, 2023.(2022 NI

5. Directorate

The dirgctors n office at tne data of this eport are a3 lollows:

Fada Kimemia (Chairpsrson)

|s@as Awuonda

Bob Kanna Rasignad Novambaer 30, 2023
Ashok Shah Resignad November 30, 2023
Eunice Kariuk| )

Geafirey Odundo Rasignad March 1 2024
Kiprans Kittany

Mroregambe Mwebess Resoned August 37, 2023
Lawranca Kimathi

Sitays Lopakakyil

Jess= Kagoma Appeoinied Septembar 1, 2023

6. Evants sfter the reporting period
The directors are nol sware of any materml event which sccurred after the reparting date and up to the date of this repart
7. Statement of disclosure to the company's auditor
Wilh respact to sach person who'1s a dirsctor on the day that this report is approved.
= them 5. 30 far as the persen s aware, no relevant audit mformation of which the company’s suditor is onaware; and
*  |ha persor has lakan all the steps thal halsha cught o have taken 3s a director to be aware of any relavant audit
infarmation and 1o astablish hal the company’a auditar is awore of tha! information.
8, Terms of appointment of the auditor
Grant Thorntan LLP, Gertifisd Public Accountants (K), exprass thair willingness to continuz in office In accordance with the
company's Arlicles of Association and Sedton 719 of ne Kenyan Companies Anl, 2015 The ditgclors monllar Lhe
effectiveness obsectvity and independence of the audilor, The directoss also approva the annual audit engagement contras)
which sets oul the terms of the alditor's gppuintment and the related fess
8.  Approval of annual financial statoments

Tha srnual fingncial smtemants =&l out o pages 9 141, which have bean firepaiad an' Ihe guing concem basis, wars
approvad by the board of directors on March 22 2024 and wera signed on 05 behall by




Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited
Armual Finanelal Statemants forihe year sended Decambar 31, 2023

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The Kanyan Comparnes Act. 2015 requines tha directors 1o propars annual linsncial statements (orgach financial yaar thal giva
& trug and fair wew of the financidl position of the company a5 st the snd of the fmancal year and of s profit or/less for that
year, It nlso reguires e direciors (o =naure that the company mainizing proper accaunting mcards thal e gufficlent o show
and exnlain the fransactions of tha company and disclose, with reasonable acouracy, the financial positon of the company. The
directors are also rasponsible for salequarding (he 2ssels of the compary, and for taking ressanable steps for the prevention
and datection of lraud and sires rragulariies,

The dirsctinis scespl tssponaibliity lar ihe prepamation end presentaion of thase anrusl bnancial statemants m accordancs with
the International Financial Repering -Standards and in the manner roguired by the Konyan Companies Ast, 2015, Thay alsa
Accapt responaibility for
= designing, implamenting and mantaining such internal conlrals as they determine necessary o emable the
presentation of anndual inancial stslements that are fres-of matsrial mossiafsmanl, whathar dus to fraud or arror,
. selecting swiabie accounting poficias and applying tham consistently; and
. making assounting aslimates and [udgeements that are reasonable In the cligumstanges

Hawving made an assessment af the mﬂ‘lpnnfﬁ ability to conbnue as a gong concarm, the directars are nol aware of any
matzrial unéeifaintas relalad o events of condltions thal may cast doubt upen the company's abilily o eontinue 3= 3 poing
toncam axcept those disclesad in note 1.1{el.

The diracinrs acknowlsdga that (ke indesandent audt of ke annial finapcial stalemants does nol ralieve tham ol lheir
responsinilitias. '

The annual financial statements s=t out on pages 9tod1, which have besn preparsd on the going concem baum, were
spproved by the board of directars on March 22 2024 and wera signed on their befialf by

-

Ajda Kimamia Iszac Awuo n-do
[Diregtar) (Birector)




& GrantThornton

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholder of Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Annual Fimancial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annual financial stetemenis of Cantral Depository and Setilement Corporalion Limitad (the company)
sst out on pagss 8 lo 41, which comprise the statement of financial position as at Decamber 31, 2023, stateman! of profit or
loss and other comprahansiva iIncome, statemant of changes n aguity and statemant of cash flows for the year then ended,
and noles to the annual financial staterments, including a summary of significant accounting policles.

In our gpinian, the annual financial statements present faiy, in all matenal respecis. the financial posibon of Central
Depository and Setiement Corporation Limited as at December 31, 2023, and ils fmancial performance and cash fiows for
the year then anded In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirementz of the Kenyan
Companias Act, 2015

Basis for Opinion

\Wa conducted our audit In aceerdanes with Internallonal Standards on Auditing, Our respensibilitizs under those standards
ara furlher described in the Auditor's Responsibiliies for the Annual Financizl Statements section of our report. We sme
independert of the company In socordance with the Intarnational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Infemational
Code of Ethics for Professionsl Accountants (IESBA Coda) and other independance requistements applicabls ta performing
audits of annual finanoial staterments in Kenya., We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in sccordance with the
IESBA Code and in accordance with olher afhlcal requiraments applicable to performing audits In Kenya We balleve that
tha audit evidance wa have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgeement, were of most significance in our audit of the
annual financial statements of the surrent penod. These matiers wem addressed In fhe context of cur audit of the annual
financial statements a8 a whale, and in forming oor opinion thersan, and wa do not provide & separata opinjon on hasa
matisrs,

[Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

formation technolegy (IT) sysiems and controls over
nmancial reporting

The Company ls heavily reliant on |T systems for recognition |Our  audil procedures Included bul was not limilad 1o
of the company's revenus. Dus to the manual intervention the following:
lerd need to reconcile dats, high level of aulomation.fa)l We assessed and tested the oversll design and
complaxily and  trail of the transaclions on the onlinepérational effectiveness of aontrols over  information
trading system &t the NSE, there is a nsk that the controls systems that are critical te financial reporting.
around complex 1T systems may not be designed andp)Through ssupport of our IT specialists, review the |T|
oparating affectivaly. enaral Controis (ITGCe) and related application contrals
gant to support the financial statement audit,
) We reviewed he compliance of the Company based tn
ection 32 and 33 of the Central Depasitory Act, 2000.

Other Informatlon

The directors are rasponsible for the ether information. The other information comprises the information includad in the
Directors’ Report &s required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, which we tbtained priar (o the date of this report, and the
Annual Repert, which s expectad to be mada avallable to us after that date. The other information does not include the
annugl fimancial statements and our auditor's report thereon

Qur-opinion on the annual fingncial statements does nol cover the ofher information and we do not-and will not exprass an
audit opinien or any form of assurance conclusion therson

In connection with our sudit of the anneal inancial staements. aur responsibility |5 to read the other information &nd, in
dolng so, consider whethar the other information Is materially Inconsistent with the annual financial statemants or our
knowledge obtained in the audil, or otherwlse appears lo bs materially misstated, If, based an the work we have performed
an the aiher information obtained prior to the date of this auditors repor, we conglude that thare iz a matenal misstatameant
af this ether information, we am requirsd o report fhat fact. We have nathing o report in this regard,

B

Mwsrwwen nif Geami linesinn desrialinns L ischesd



Q GrantThornton

Independent Auditor's Report

Responsibliities of the Directors for the Annual Finaneial Statemants

The direztars are responsitile for the preparation and fair prasentation of the annual financial statements |n secordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the rE:LIWEJTmnts af the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, and for such intarmal
control as the diractars detarmineg is necassary o enabls the preparation of annual financlal statemants that are free fram
matarial misstaternant, whether due lo fraud or girar,

In preparing the annual financlal statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to conlinue as
& going concam, disclosing, as applicable, matters rélated o going concem and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend 1o liquidale the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic allemative
bt to do 8o,

Those charged with gevemance are responaible for oversesing the company’s financal reporting process
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Annual Financial Statsmants

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabls assurance aboul whether the annual financal stetements as a whaois ars frea from
matarial misstatement, whether due to traud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranies that an audit conducted |n accurdance with International
Standards on Auditing will always detect a malerial misstatameant when || exists. Misslatements can anse from fraud or erar
and are considared matarial If, individually or in the agaregats, they could reasonatily be expectad lo influence the economic
decislons of users takan on the basis of these anpual fnanclal statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standerds on Augiing, we exergise professional judgeement and
mal:nla[n prafessional skepticism throughout the audit. We alse;
Identify and 2ssess the risks of matenal misstaternent of the annual financial sialemants, whather dus Lo fraud ar
arror, design and perform sudit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidenca that is sufficient
and appropriate io provide a basis for our opinjon. The risk of nat gelecting & material misstatement resulting fram
fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror, ae fraud may invelve collusion, fomgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresaniations, or tha ovarmde of internal cantrol,

*  Ootain an understanding of intemal contral relevant lo the audid in order lo design audit procedures thal are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposs of sxpressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the
company's intermal conirol.

*  Evaluste Ihe appropriatoness of accounting polizies used and (he reasonablensss of accounling estmates and
related disclosures made by the diractors,

= Conclude on {he appropriateness of the directors' use of the going soncem basls of ascounting and based on the
audit avidence obtained, whether a materisl uncerfainty sxists related o events or conditions thal may cast
significant doubt on the company's ability to confinue as a going concem. If we concluds that @ materal
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attertien in our auditor's repert to fhe relaled disclosures in the snnual
financial statements or, I such disclosures ars Inadequate, to madily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our suditor's repert. However, future evenls or conditions may causa
thee company o cease to conlinue a3 a golng concsrm.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the snnual financial statoments, Including the
disclosures, and whether the annual fimancial statements reprasent the undarlying transactions and svenls in a
mannar that schisves falf prasentalion

We communicate with those charged with governance regaiding, among ather matters, the planned scope and tming of the
audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencias in Intarmal contral that we idenlify durng our audit

We also provids those charged with governance with a statemant thal we have complied with relevant ethical regulremants
regarding indapandence, and to communicate with them all reletionships and sther matiers thet may reasonably ba though!
1o baar on our indepandence, and whare applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those chargad with govermance, wa delarming those matters thal ware of most
significance in the audit of the annual financial ststements of the current peried and are therefore the key audit matters, We
desuribe thess matters in our auditer's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in sxtramely rare circumstances, we determine that & matter should not be communicated in our report becauss the adverse
consaquencas of doing so would reasonably be expacted to outweigh the public interest banefits of such communication.

My iof framt Hanimbns internstemal imilard



& GrantThornton

Independent Auditor's Report

Report on Other matters prescribed by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015

As required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, wa report fo you bassd on our audit, In our opinion the
infarmation given in tha report of the directors on page 3 - 4 |s conslstent with the annual fimancial statements.

The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditar's report was CPA Alfred Siale,
Practicing Cerfificate No, 1630,

Granl Thornton LLP
Cerlified Public Accountanis

For and on behall of Grant Thornion LLP
Emﬂ:d Public Accountanis (Kenya)
Mairobi

CME3EM223/AUD

Mg il Clrasd Tesomminn Inlermat el Limiiod



Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited

Apnual Financial Statemeants for the year ended Dagembar 31, 2023

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Flguras in Stillings Nofe{s) 20323 2022
Rawvenis 3 171,308 842 186,452 958
Other [ncome d 47,240 777 14,385,623
Gain an disposal of assats and subsidiary 5 13 082 7088 291
Expactad oradi 053 4n bank batarces 21 170417 95 8907
Expectad cradi loss an debtors: 20 {3.150,090) 2a73.674
Admnisirabive =xpsnsas i (192_206,848) (222981142
Violuntary exits expanse 8 - (61.478,243)
Qperaling skpansss T (75,660,979 {94,255 64l
Oparating joss (82,490,719) (147, T16,872)
Invastman! incomes 0 13819887 23 201,575
Finanoecosts 11 (7 BBB.918) (8,598 437)
Loss before taxation {56,565, 740) {131,241,734)
Taxstion 12 12.635.800 23,838,443
Loss for the yaar {43,933, 940) {107,373,281)
Other comprehensive income:

Itamis that may be reclassified to profit or loss;

Lége an valuatisn &f invEstmenis in dabl instfimznts {5,743, 584) (5,800,833)
ImeomE & relaling bdems that may ba recizseifiad (B0, 140) B7L 140
Total items Lthat may be reclassified to profit or loss (6,653,824) (4,230,733
Total compranensive loss for the year {50,587 764) (112,104,084}

The accounfing pollcies on pages 1310 23 and the notas on pagas 24 ta 41

stiements

formt an integral par of 2 annual financial




Central Depository and Seftlement Corporation Limited
Annual Financial Stalements for the yaar andad Decambsr 31, 2023

Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2023

Figuras in SHilings Motais) 223 i

Assois

Non-Current Assets

Propary ard sguipmant 14 21,531,011 MM AN

Right-al-use assets 15 ag 354 105 50,457,412

Intsngshin assats 18 B3,332. 932 103.122. 447

Invashnant in sLbsidiary 17 20,000 20,000

Inymstment in govarnmeanl aecurilies-maagurad trough FVYOCI 8 B5.058,171 100:841.855

Daformed tax 18 56.689.619 53 855,165
305,987,458 344,757,891

Current Azsats

Trade and other rocalvabias 20 80,173,768 48 922,623

Tax racaivabile 13 52,285,147 52 285,940

Cash and bank balances ! 19,720,905 45.583.146
152,158,820 146,801,709

Total Asvels 458 147,278 491 569,700

Equity and Liabilitles

Equlty

Shara capital 22 175,000,000 175,000,000

Rosarves (11,584 817) (4.930,723)

Ratained incoma 167,058 580 210,983,530
J30,474,37) 381,062,737

Liahilities

MNon-Current Liabillitles

Laase lisbifilies 23 42,004 574 53 205,929

Current Liabilitios

Trade and pthel payaolas 249 F4.253 54 48,015,842

Loasa liabilities 23 11,314,950 G274,152

85,807, 7M1 57,290,034
Total Liabilities 127,672,305 110,446,562
Total Equity and Liabilities 458,147,278 491,559,700

The annual inancial statements and the noles on peges 9 1o 47, ware approved by the board of dirgctors on March 22 2024

and were signad on s hehall by

g

Ajda Khimemia lsaae Awuondg
(Director) [Director)

The aecounting policiss on pages 13 o 23 and the notes an pagas 24 1o 41 farm 30 integral part ol the annual fingneial

satomanis

10



Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited

Annual Financal Statemants far the yvear ended Decambar 31, 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity

Shame caphal Far valys Hetainad Total souity

Figurss |n Shillings resanve Incame

Balanco as ot January 01, 2022 175,000,000 . 318,366,821 493,366,821
Loss for the year - - (107.27),291) {107, 373291)
Oiher comprehensiva ncome - [4.930,743) . (4.930,721)
Talal eomprehsnsive Loss for the year - (4,830,793 (107,373,291 (112,304,084
Balance as at January 01, 2023 175,000,000 (4,530,793) 210,983,530 381,082,727
Loss for the vear = S {43,933,940) (43 9323,940)
Githar comprafenads Incomes - [6,653.524) . [B:853.B24)
Tolal comprehensive Loss for tha year - {6.653.824) (42,9731,940) 150,587,784)
Balance as at December 31, 2023 175,000,000 (11,564,617) 167,052,530 330,474,973
Mota{s) 2

The accounting policies on panes 13 fn 23 and the nales an pages 24 in 41 foim an inlegral pan of the &nnug finanoal

atatameris.
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Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited
Annial Financial Siatamaents far the yaar entled December 31, 2023

Statement of Cash Flows

Flguras in Shillings Natais) 2023 000
Cash flows usad in operating activities

Gash ugad in operations 25 {83.877) [27.373,140¢
Tax paid 13 [1.238.021) (5,294 537)
Met cash usad In operating activities {1,331,888) (33,672,677}
Cash Nlows used In Investing activities

Furctiass of propemy and eguipment 4 (1,663 148) {2.814,358)
Procesds from sale of propeny and 2guipmesnt 14 55,098 178,724
Purchasa of mtangible assats L] . (19,633,412}
Procseds rom disposal of subaidiary W - 7.270.023
Ivvestimant in govemmeant securnbizs 18 - {105 5642 788)
Inter=sl incoms 10 13,819,897} {23,201, 575)
Net cash used in investing activities (15 427.946) (144,945 388)
Cash flows used in financing activities

Payrient on lesse Hatill{ies 23 (17.001.315) (18,257,034}
Intarast paymant on lease liabilives 1" 7,898,918 6,696,437
Nst cxzh used In financing activites {9,102,387) (11,660,597
Net movemont in cash and cash equivalents for the yoar {25,662,241)  (190,170.660)
Cash and sh eguivalents as ot 1s) January 21 45,583 148 235,761,806
Total cash and cash eguivalents at end ol the yoar i 18,720,905 45581148

The accounting policlas on peEges 13 to 23 snd the nbtes on pages 24 t0°41 farny 3 intagral part of the Snnual Rnanmcial

statamanits.

12



Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited
Anntial Financial Stalsments lor 1he year endad December 31, 2023

Significant Accounting Policies

1. Significant accounting pollcies

The principal accounting polic:es soplied in the praparation of those annual inancisl shalamants. are sat out balaw.
1.1 Basis ol praparatlon

a) Statement of compllance

The-snnual financial staiements have bean prepared on the going concam besis in accordanca witn, anid in comaliancs with,
Intarrational Frencial Reporting Stendards (IFRS") and International Financial Reparting Intsrpratations Committza (*IFRICY)
interpretations issuad and affective al the Uma of praparing theza annual fnancial siiements and 1he Kemyan Companisa Aol
2018

For Kenyan Companiss Act. 2015 repurting purpioses, the balance shesl is represéntad in thass annual fnancial skatemants by
the Statemant of Financial Fosition and the loss and foss account by the Statement of Profit or Loss-and Other Comprahansive
Income,

The annual financial statements have been preparad on the histons cost cenvention, unless othersss atamd in the acesuniing
palicies which follpw gnd ineapiorals the principsl aocouniing polices ==t out balow

Thess aceounting pobicies are consistent with the prévious parod unkess olherwise slated

b) Funetional currency

They ar= presentad in Kenyan Shillings. which is the company's hunctlanal curtency and roundsd off to the nearest Shilling
&} Galng concern

The company recorisd & natioss:of KES 43,933,840 for the year engod 31 Dacamber 2023 companed (o 31 December 2022
g met loss of KES 107,373,253 The combeny  revenue hes decreasad from KES 196452858 i the prior yesr to KES
171,308.842 For lha yaar ended 31 Gacamber 2023 Tha animpany also recorded a nagative cashilow used in speration af KES
1,331,869 (2022-KES 32672677

A guidsd by he Bodrd, Msnagemenl undertvok a strategic refocus process aimed at adapbing stralegy implementation o
current sconamig, marke!, and COSC conditions:In the short term, Mansgemant has bean engaging Key stakahoidsrs n tha
S@cco edosysiam for the provision of cantralizad sarviess, angaging peteniial Issuars of listed anag unlisted securities for the
provision of registry sarvices, and engaging Unclaimed Finahcial dissabs Authority (o unlock tha polsnijal of the degloed
dormant assats To manags the oparational expenses. Mapagement has cansolidatad (1= operahans on ong fioar (10th floar) al
Europa Towers and sublel the 11th flaar lo reduce the rental expenses, putting a fresze on hirlng new staf and efficiently
deploying our currant siaff complersent, and (educing other oftice genaral mainlenance cosis among other afforts. In the
CUrEnt year, aparating and adminstratve costs have beon reducad by 28.2% compared to lss! year and a further reduction s
expecEad n 2024

In this viaw of the abave and as at the date of this report and based on the financial paformancs, tha dyeciors are not awars
ol any othar malarnal uncariainkas rafplad i avents'or candiiions thal may cast doubl upsn the campany's abllity lo cantinue as
& going concarr in the foreseeable future and therelore the financlal sistemants kave Besn prepared on'a going concem basis,

1.2 Significant judgaments snd sources of astimation uncertainty

The presaration of annual fpancial satemants o aonfarmily wilh IFRS requires misnegsmsnt. from ims to {ims, & maka
judgesments, estmates snd assumpijons that affect the applcoation of policles and egored omounts of assetl. liobilities,
inceme and expanses. Thase eglimatss and assouinted assumplions are hassd an expenance =nd varous alier factons hat
e bdlisved (0 ba redsondbls undse the arcumstances, Actual resulls may differ rom (hese estimates, The estimales and
undarlying - asaumptions aro reviewsd an an ongoing basis. Revisions o acoouniing estimates are recognised in the penod in
which the gstimales are revized and inany lulure pedotls alfectd

Critical judgements in kpplying sccounting policies

The critical judgamanis modo by management in’ applying accounting policias, apait fram thbss involving sshimations. that
have the most significant affact on the amounta recogmised in ihe financial statemants, are outlined gs foliows:

l.easa classification
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Significant Accounting Policies

1.2 Significant judpsmants and sources of astimation uncertainty {(continuaed)

The company s party o (eesing arrangemants, both 83 a lesses and as @ lessol. The matmaen of leasing kansachions 0 the
annusl linancial statarmenta i mainly determined: by whether the leass Is considarad to be an operating lease of a finance
lease. In making this aasassmient, managamant considers the substance of the lsoss. as wall as the lsaal form, and mokes a
judgarmant about whsiher substantiaty sl of the risks and rewards of ownsrship ars transfarred: ) )

Kzy sources ol eatimation uncertainty
Measurement of expected credit losses (ECL)

The measuremant of the expectad creolt loss allowanss for linancial assets maasured al emofisad cost s an @rea that
requires the use of complax modals and significant assumptian about lulurs scanomit sondiions and cradit behaviour.

A number af significant judgements are also requirad in 2pplying the accounting requiremants for measunng EGL. such as
+  Da=mining crilEna for sigrilicant increass in credil sk,
. Chooszing appropriate madals and assumptions for the maasuramenl ol ECL
*  Estabilishing the numbear and relatve weightings of forward-looking scenanos for each type of preductmarkel and
associated ECL, and
+  Esfablishing groups of smilar fingncial assats [or the purpogss of measunng ECL

ECL's are maasurad a3 the probabilily-weighled pressnl value of espedisd cash shortfalls over the rsmaning axpasied hfs of
ihe financial instrumsnt

The measurement of ECL's sra bassd pnmarily on the preduct of the instrument's Probabiily of Dafayl [PD), Loss Given
Dafaull (LGO) and Exposurs At Dafault (EAD),

Tha ECL, motzl applied for ingncial pesets othsr than accounts recalvables and conlsing 3 thise-stage approach thal s basad
on the changa n tha sradil quality of assels sinoe inital recoanition.
*  Stage | - |l &t the reparting dats, ne cradil risk of nen-impairad finandal instrumanis has not ncreasad significantly
sinca initial recognition. these nancial instrumants are classifiad in Staga 1 and & laks allowsnes hal i messuad,
at each reporting date, atan amount equal 1o 12-monih pepectea cradit losses 15 recortdsd.

. Stage 2 - Whan Ihefe (8 2-significant inorgase In cradit fisk sibce nllial resognition. thase nandrigaired financial
instruments are migrated o Stage 2, and a |oas allowance that 1= maasured, af each repormng date, at an amount
equal to lifetims expected credit loases s recorded. In subsaguent teporling pariods, if the cradil risk of the linsnwal
instrument impraves such that there iz na [onger 3 significant increass in cradit fiek sincs nitfal recogrition. the ECL
model roquires reverting to recognition of 12-month expected credlt losses

*=  Stage 3 - Whan ane or mors evants that have o detimenial impact on ne sstimated futuie cash lows of & (nencal
assal have spoued, thie fingnoml assel B condidersd credi-mpaired and @ migrated to Stage 3, and an allowance
eqiial lo litebme sxpantad losses conbnues (o be recorded or the finoncial asset is wiilten off

Assessment al significant incfessa in credit nsk. The determination of a significant incraass in credit rsk takes Inte account
many diffsrant factors Including & comparison of a fnancial insfruments cragil gk or PO al tha reporting date and the cradit of
PO at tha dafe of inifial recognition, IFRS & howsver includes rebuliabie presymptions that contractual ppyments that are
overdue by mora than 30 days will reprasant a significant iherease in oredit riak (stiue 2) srd contractuz! payments that are
mie thar B0 days ovardiss will repressnt cradlt impairment (slage 3). Tha caompany uses these guldelines in determining tha
staging of its knancial assels unlass there |3 persuasive evidence availabiz 1o robut these presumplions

For acegunte tecsivables, e company has appliad tha simplifisd modsl undsr IFRS 8 whisrs lifstime sepected crodil |oss
aliowance i3 recognised on the baas of o provigioning matii,

Thecarrying amounis of the company's financisl assats that ars subject to impairment assossmant ara diselased in nata 27,
Falr value estimatian
Sevaral assals s labihiles of the oompany sre sithar measured a8t fair value or disclosare is made of their fair valuas.

Os=reable markst data 1= used as inpuls o the sxtem fhat || & available Qualifisd sxemal veluars are consullad for (he
determinabinn of appropriata valuation Rehninues and inputs,

Informanon about the speciiic echnigues &nd inputs of the vanous asssts and abities B deciosed m nom 27
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12 Significant judgements and saurces of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment 18sting

The company reviews and lests (he canying value of assels whan avenls or changss in gitcumstances suggest that ke
carying amount may not be recoverable. Whon sich indicators axisl, maragemeant dalenming the recoverable amount by
perfarmiig vales in use dnd far valus calculatons, These caloulabons raquire the usa of estimates and assumptions, Whan it
is.rot pussibhe o determing lhe recoverable amount for an indivedual sssst, management ssaessas the meoverable amount for
I8 cash genarating unit to which e asset balongs

Useful jives of property and sgquipment

Managamint assass Ihe sppropriatensss of the uselul llves of proparty, plant and sgulpment at the end of =ach r=porting
parisd The usaful lives ol matar vehickes, furniiurs and computsr sguipment ara datarmined bassd on campany rmplacsmant
policies for the vanous sssats. |ndividual assets within these classes, which hava a signthicant carrying-amount ara assassad
separately 1o considar whether replacament will be necessary oulside of nurmal replacament parameters. The usalil e of
aquipmanl is assessad annually based on factors including wear and lg&r, technological obsolescencs and usage
rROUrEmants.

When the esbmat=d uselul IFe ol an assst diffors: rom provious estimales. the chanae is applisd prospectively In the
determination of the depreciation chamge.

#ccounting for leases under IFRS 18
Mariagament has made vanous judgements and sstimalss undsr |FRE 18 a3 detaiizd below

Incremental borrowing rate. To daterming tha incremental borrawing 2o, the company
*  whare possible, Less recent tnird-gany financing recelved 2z 3 stailing point, adjusted o efegl changss n inancing
gonditions since third pary fingncng was receivd, )
+  uses 3 hulld-up approach thal starts with a risk-fres ntersst rate sdjusted lur cradit sk, which does nat have recent
third party financing. and
L makes adjusiments specific to (ne lease, &.g. tamn, counfry, currency 3N seCuUNTY

Lease term/period: [n dei=imining the |l=2se Emm, managemant considers all facte and circumstances ths! cdresis an
gconomic incantive o ayarcise an extension option, or not sxercizs a lerminabion opbon. Exlension options [or penods after
rmmlnaﬂqﬂ aptions) ara anly Incudsd In 1he lsasa teim Il he lzase 15 eesonsbly csrtain (o be sxtended (or nol rminatad)

For leases of offices, the following factors are normally the most ralewant
+  If thase ara significant psnallies o Eminats (or not axtand), the graup s typically reasonably senain to extend (or
riot lerrmiriate) )
’ ITary leasshold mprovements are aspatted to hive & significant remaming value, the group s typically reasonably
gartaln |8 extand (or nol i2mmynats)
*  Otherwiss, the group considars other fectors including histoncs| faass dumations and the costs and business
disruption required to replace the |sasad azsal

Most extension options in offices and storsge spaces fave notl beep ncludsd i the lease liability. because the-group coufd
replace the 2ssats withoul significant cost or business distuption

Tne teass temm s rTeassessad if an oplion s acteally exergised (or not exercsed) or tha group tecomss:ablosd to exercise (o
nal exanisa} | The assessmen| of reasanasble certalnty (s only revisad || & slgnificant avent or & signifcant changs In
circlimstances accurs. which aifects this asiessmenl znd that s within ths controd of thatessso.

The carrylng amounts of nghb-of-use of assets and lease lisbilities are disclosad in notas 15 and 23, respactivaly,

1.3 Investmants in subsidiary

Investmants in subsidiary are camad al coa! |8ss any actumulatad impsianant lossas.

1.4 Property and equipment

Praperty and equipment are tangible asssts which the campany holds for its cwn use and are expected 1o be usad for more
thar orie year
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1.4 Property and equipment {cantinuad)

An ltern of properly and equipmient is recognised a3 an ass2t when |t 5 probabils that future acanomic benefits assosiated with
the ttem will flow to the company, and the cost of the (tem can be measured reliably

Proparty and aguipmant is imitally messarad at cost Cost includes all of the axpanditure which s dirsctly. attribltabls 1o he
atglasition of construction of tha assel. including the capialsation af barrowing costs on qualifymg assals and adjustmants m
respact of hedge accounting, where approphals,

Expanditurs incurrad subsaguantly for maier sarvicas. addillons to ar raplacemerts of pons of property and equipmant ane
capllafizad Il is probable that fulure aconomic benelits azsociated with the sxpehditure will flow o the company and the casl
can b measurad raligbly. Day 1o day ssovicing costs-ars included in profit or foss m the yese inowhich thay ars incurso

Dapraciation of an assst comimences when ths ass! 18 availabls for uae au inlendad by moaragemanl Dspreciilion s cherged
to write off the assel’s carrying amount ovar s estimated wseful ifa to its astimated residual valua, using 2 method that best
meflests the pattem inwhich the assel’s esonomic benefitz are consumad by the company, Leased assals are depraciated 0 a
canalzstant manner aver the shartiae of their axpecied usaful ives atd the lease term. Dapracistion ls not changed to ap gssstIf
its estmated residugl value exceads or s equal to it canying amounl, Dapreciation of an asset peasas at the =arher of the
date that the sasst (= classified a3 hald for sols or derecagnissd,

The useiul lives of items of propery and egupmant have besn assassed as follows

ltam Depraciation method Rate per annum (%)
Furniture fttings and aquipmant Straight lime 12,5

Motor wehinias Straight line 26

Office =quipman} Straight line 25
Computsr, taksEand copigrs Straight lins 25
Laasghald improvaments Straight ling 125

The residusl value, usail fe 2nd depredaion methed of each assst ae raviswad al ke end olesch Ssparing year [ (ha
axpecttions differ from previcus estmatas. the change Is accountad for prespectively as 3 changs in accountling sstimats

Each partof an #am of oropemy and sguipment with 3 cos? that s significant in selaten to the totsl cosl .ol the tem =
depreciated saparately

The deprasiation charge for each yaar ts recognised in profit or [as5 unless |t s includad in the camying smount of anofher
aesal

An nem of property &nd equipment 15 derecognised upon disposal o when no future sconpmic henafits gre axpectad from it
cantinued uss or dispesal. Any gain or loss arisng fom the darecagnition of an ltem of propey and equipment, datarmined as
tho differance batwoean the not dlsposal procesds, i any, and tha carrying amount of tha ltam, s includad in profit or loss whan
the tam 8 dasscogrissd

1.5 Intangible assets

Intangiile assets with finite usslul lives thal ars amuied ssparatoly arg carrind al cost less gecumulatod amprtisation and
pecumutatad impairmant (osgas. Amortisaton B meopnEnd on 3 sreight-line: baoig over thair estimated useful lives. The
estimated ussful e and amortisation melhod are raviewed at the end of 2ach raporting penod, with the sffect of any changes
in estimats bang acoounted for an 8 praspsalive baskn

An intangible asset is recognised whan _ _

+ it probable thal (he expectad fulure sconamis barafiis that are attibutable 1o the assel will Now 1o the 2pily: and

= the costof (= asset can be measyred afiably
Computsr software and lcsnces aré capitalised on Lhe-basis of the costs ineurred to acquire and brina 1o ude ihe speclfic
software, Computor sofftware 13 emortised ovar (is 2stimatad usaful lifa which is estimatad fo ke 8t four years and gight yeas in
rpepent of COSC wobsite and GOS software mspectively
Tne assets resitual values and usshul lwas are reviewed, and sdjustaa if agpropriste, st each reportng dats,

Thi dmortisation panod and the amartisation meathod for intangibls asseis are raviswad evany pEriod-end
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1.5 Intangiblie assets (continuad)

An-assals camying amount is witten down immediataly to s rscovarable amaumt I the asset's cariying amdust s gredter than
Its estimated recoverable amount

Gains and fosses on disposal of intangibla agsats are determingd by reforancs o theil earying amount ard are taken inio
Bezounl n detarmining opereing (essiforafit

1.6 Non-current asssts (or disposal groups) held-for-sala
Men-currenl assets are clasaifizd as asssls held-for-gale whan thalr carying amoeunt s 1o be recovers procisally through 3
sale transaction rather than through conbriuing use and-3 sala 3 considarad highly probabie: They are maasured al [he iower
of Ihair cammying amount and falr vallz kess costs 1o sell. Costs 1o sall are the (ndramantal couts dirsGlly altrlbulsbla fa live
dispasal of an asset, axcluding flinsncs tosts and incoma (@x Sx0snse.
Property and equipment and intangibile asssts are et depreciated or amodtised once classified as hald for sale.
When tha company 13 committed o 2 diapasal plan wwvoilving loss of conirol of & subsichary, -all of the-sssats and liabilines of
that subaidiary are classiled as held for sals whan the above criteda are mat moardiass of whathar the group will retain 2 non-
cantroliing Intarest in s lormsrsubsidiary afiar solz )
1.7 Financial Instrumants
Finanzial inatruments hald by the company are classilied in atsordancs with the prowisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
Hrozaoly, the-classification possioiines, which e agoptsd by fie compeny &8s applicsbis, ars as oliws
Finaneial ass2ls which aré geol instrurments
. Amorlised cost (This category applizs only when e contractual 1erms of (he instrument giva rise, -on speafied
dates, to cash flows that are salely paymenis of pincipal and interest an principal, and whare the Instrument is hekt
undat 2 busingss modal whose objactive iy met by holding (he-insirumant o collect canbractiial cash fowa)

Financial labiliiss:
«  Amorlised desl

Motz 27 Financlal Irstruments and fisk managemen! presents the financial instrumeants held by the company tased on thelr
specific chassifications

All reguiar way purchasss or sales of finsacial assels ars (seoghised and derecoanised on a trade date basie Regular way
purchasas of sales are purchases or sales of financal assels that require delivary of sssels within the lime frama established
by regulation ar convention in the markelpiacs.

The spacific accounhng policies for ine classification, recogninon snd measurmant of each ype of inanoai nstrumant peid by
fhe compary are presented balow

Accounts and other receivables
Clansification

Trade and other receivables, excluging, when applicable, VAT and prepaymenls, am classiiied 25 fnancal assats
subsoguently maasuied & amortisad cost (note 20)

They have been claasified In this manner because (helr conlractual tamms give rise, an specified datss tn cash flaws that ars
solaly payments of principal and infarest on the principal outstanding, and the company's bugiress maodol iz to cullect the
contraziual cash flows on frade and olhar recenvables

Recognition and meassuremant

Trade and olher recelvables are recognised when the company becomss a pary 1o the contraclual provisions of the
receivables. They are measured, a1 inital recognitton, el fair value plus ransaction costa. i any

They drs subssquently msasurad Al amortissd cost,

i



Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited
Annual Financial Statemants for the year anded December 31, 2023

Significant Accounting Policies

1.7 Financlal instruments (continued)

The: amortised oost 8 [ha amount secognised on the receivable |nitially, minus principal repaymants, plus cumulative
amortisation {intaresi) wsing the effestive interest metnad of any difference betwsen me nital ampunt-and the maturly amount
adjustsd tor any los2 allowanca.

Accournts and other receivablss denominated in forelgn currencias

When trade snd other receivablss are denominated in 8 foregn cumency, tha camying amoun! of the recovahbles sre
tatermined in the forgign curreney. The carrying amaunt is than tansizted to the Snillings equivalent using the soot rate at the
end of gach reporting period. Any resulting fore'gn exchange gains or losses ale recognised n laas o less (nat= 5.

Details of foreign clifency risk exposute and the management thersol are providsd in the finanoal instruments and risk
manatamant (note 27),

Impalrment

The company mnecogniseg @ loss allowance for expacted credif losses on trede and other recevables; excluding VAT ang
prapayments. The amaunt of sxpected cradil losses (s updaled at each sparting date

The company measures the loss allowance for rade and other recenableas af an amount equsl o lilsbme sapscksd oredn
lpases (Wfehms ECLL which reprasants the axpatted cradit Iasses that will result from all pessible dafaull events over the
sxpactad lifa of the receivable.

Measurement and recognition of axpectad credit losses

The eampany makes use of 3 grovidlon mattix 33 a practical axpedient to the detemination of expected credl lesses on trads
and athe! receivables. Tho provision matrix is based on histone oredil loss axpanencea, ad|usted for faclors thal are spacific 1o
the debtors, genaral economic condiions and an assassment of both e curant and lorecast direction of condibons at the
reporting dats, Including the tme value of money, whars appropriate,

Thie custfomer bass s widespread and does nat show sigrificantly ditterant loss pattemns lor diffarent customar sogmenis, Tho
Ives allowancs Is calculated on a collective basis for all accounts and oifer recaivablas fn lotality. Details af ihe provision
rrialiin s presanled innots 200

Write off policy

Ths comparny wites off a recelvable when there 15 infarmation indicating that the counterpany is in severs financial diffioulty
and hers ls no realistic prospact of renovery, 8.5 whisn (he colnfsmarty has bean placed undar liquldation or has sftered inte
banrkrupicy procesdmgs. Receivables written off may shll ba subect to anforaeman| sctivitias: under (ha company r=obvery
procsdures, taking mito acsount legal mdvite wimre appropiate, Aty recovenes made are recognised In loss or loss

Credit risk

Destails of credit risk are included in the trade and other receivablzs nolo (noto 200 apd the financial instruments aad rish
managament (nofe 7).

Dorpeognition

Rafer to'the darscagnition section of the accaunting pelicy for the palicies and processes related (o derscognition
Cash and cash equivalants

Cash and casn aguivalents ars stEled & camying amount which & deemead to be i value

1.8 Tax

Current tax assets and labilities

Current tax for current and prior panods 5, 0 the axtent unpala, meognisad asa lability. If the amount already paid 0 respsc
of current and prior periods edceeds the amount due for thies panods, the excesd |5 recoonised a5 an assol
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1.8 Tax (continuad)

Currant lax liabilibes {ansats) for the current and prior penods sre measursd 3t the amount adpeadtad 10 be paid 1o (reeovered
from) the tEax authornias. using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have bean enacted or substantively anactod by 'the and of the

reporting pericd,
Defarred tax assots and labilities

A dalarred (ax Nabilily &8 reoogoisad for i tasable tamporiy differances, axcapt 1o he sxtant that the defarsd tax lability
atises from the Inltigl recegnition of an-assat ar llablity in & transaction which at the time of the fransaction. affacts nathar
acoaunting loss nof takabls profit (tas lass),

A deferred tax assel i3 recognised for 8l deductible tamporaty differences to the axient that it s probable that taxable loss will
be availabila against which tha deductible temporary difference can be Ulilised. A defersd tax ass=t is not recognlssd when Il
ansas from the nital resogniron of an ass:at or habllity in a transaction al the time of the ranzacton, sffacts naithar acoounting
lnss nor laxabke orofit (tax luss)

t_:-afenad tEx @zse(s and habililas are messurad 3t the @ reles thal sre pxpeated to apply o e penod whan theasset s
raalised arthe liabllity = seltied based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have baen enscted or substantively enactied by the end
af the regarting prariod

Tax expenses

Currant and deferad taxes are recognisad as income or an gxpenss and mcluded in loss ar loss for the panod, exceot to the
axtenl (hat the tax arlzes Irom

. @ fransaction or avent which 1§ seognisad, in thesame or 3 difflefant pencd, to/olhar compiohenaiVe incoma, or

b abusiness combinalion,

Current tax and daferred mees are charged or crodited o other comprohansive income i Ihe EX relakes o (lams 1kl e
craditad or charged, in the same or & differant period, 19 other cuomprehansive Inname:

Current tax and deferred aves are charged or crcited diFeclly o squity if e lax relates lotems that are credited or chamed,
in the same o a differenl parod, dirsotly ineguily,

19 Leases:
The company assesces whather a contract is, or coritaing a lease, at the incaption of the tontract

A zontractis, or contalns a lgase |Fihe contract convays the nght to control the uss of an [dentifisd s=ast for 3 peslod of fime in
exchange for considamlion.

In order to assess whathar a contract s, of containg a Jease. management datarmine whather the assel Undar consideralion &
Yidentified”, which means that the asse! s sithar sxplicitly or implicilly specified in the conlract sod Inst the supplier das= not
hava & substanfial right of substitullon throughout the perfod of use, Once management has concluded that the contract deals
with an whenfifisd assst, the rght lo contral the Lss themaol i consldersd. To fhis end, coniral over (he use of an |dentified assel
anly 2xists whar the company has thenght to substantially all of the sconomic benafits fom the use of the ssset a5 wall as tha
bl te direct he use of the assat

In cicumstances whera the deternmanon of whather tha contract s or contains & lesse requires mgnificant judgesmantal, e
relevan! disciosuies are provided i the significant judgemants and sources of sstimation uncertalnty sectlon of these
aecounting policies.
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1.8 Lesses{continuad)
Company as lessoi

A lgass liabilly and cortesponding rignt-chuse assel afe recognized at the lease commancamant date, for all leass
agreamenis for which 2 company is 3 lsases extapt lor shor-tamm leases af 12 monihs or less, or l=gsas of low value
assats. For these leases, the company moognis2s the jease payments 35 on operating 2xpansa an a straight-hng basis ovar
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis i more represantative of the fime pattarn In which ecanomic benafifs
from the teasad #ssal are coksumsaa.

The vardous leass snd aondeass compananis of contracts containing leacee are accounted for separalzly, with consideralion
‘being allocated to sach lease camponant on he basis of o elative sisnd-slone prices of the lessa componants and tha
agygragale stand-alone prica of the nen-lsase compansnts [where non-lease companents axist)

Howswisr as an axception to (be preceding paragraph. the company has slected pot 1o ssparats 1he non-leass components fol
legses of land and bulldings

Datails of leasing armngemants whar (ha company 5 4 [essesara presented In nots 15 Lesses (company as lessea)
Laassa liability

The lzase lablity is inftially measured af he present value of the lzase paymants that are nat paid at the commencament date
discatnited by uking ths ras implicll Intha leaga IF this fate cannisl ba madily determined. (he company uses its Incremental
bomawing rate

lLessn gaymants included in he masaurament of the lease iabiilly comprise the lallewing

. flxed lease payments; inaluding in-subsience fiwed payments, |ess any lease ingantives;

+  vadable fsase payments that depsnd on an index or rata Initally measured Lsing the index or rate af tha
cammencamant dats;

*  fhe amount expected o be payabls by the company wnder resiiual valle guarantess,

= |he axdércisa price of putchasa aplons. if Ihe company is reasonably certain lo =xercise the option,

. {easa payments in an ophonal rerewsl period if the company s reasonably cadain o axemiss &0 sxErson ophion.
and

*  penaliiEs forsarly fermination of 8 leass, If the lease leim reflacts the exarcizs of gn option 1o 1emiingts the leas=

Variable rents that do not depand an an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lsase llabiity (or right-of-use
assal). The reliled paymsanis are reoughissd es an sxpensa i the penod Indurrad and are indludad in operaling axpensps
{note 183

The l2sse lighility 18 presentsd as @ separats ling lam on tha Statamant of Finanozl Position

The lease fiablity 18 subsaguently measured by inereasing the canying amaunt to refiect interest on the lgass lability (using the
sffactive interast method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflsct lesss payments made. Intorest charged on he lease
latility 15 mdiuded in inanca casts (nate 11],

The company remaasures the Ease ligbility (and makses a comesponding adjusimant 1o the related dghl-ol-usae aisal] whan:

= here MES been s chano Lo the leass tarm, 0 whish case the leass lability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revisad discaun! rate;

*  thers has besr a change i the assessmant of whethar the company will emrcss g puchass, etminalion o
satansion option, In which ass the lease liabiiity is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using =
reviznd discount rate,

¢ hare Nan Desn 6@ change o tha heass payments dus to a change.n an indsx or a8 rate, in which case ine leass
lablity is remeasursd by discounting the revised lzase payments using the initial dstount rate (unless the lease
payments dhangeis dus to a changsin a fleabng intarast rate, n which s228 2 revided discount rale 5 usad),

» there has been a change in expacted payment under 3 residual value guarantes, 0 which case fhe fease linbility =
remeasurad by discounting the ravissd lpase paymants using the milel discount rats,

* 3 lease contrict has besn modifled and the lease modification |s nat accoumed for as a separate lsase, in which
case tha leass liability 15 remeasurad by discounting the revisad paymeants wung & evissd discount rsts.

When (e lzass labiity s remazaured In this way, 8 corrasponding sdjusitrzrl is'mads la ths carmying smount of the right-ot-
usa assal, of 1% recogniess in loss or loas i the carrying amount of the fght-of-use asset has been reduced to zoro.
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1.9 Leasas (continued)
Right-ol-uss assels

Leass paymanis included In the maasuramen! of the lzase lablity comprise tha falowing

tha initisl ameunt of the corresponding t=sse REbility,

any leass paymants made &t or bafore the commencement dats;

ary intial dirsct ensts incumed,

any estimated costs b0 dismanile 2nd emave this undédying assal or 1o fesfors thie undeslying assé! dr the site on
which it 18 located. whes the company Wnowrs an oblgation 10 do- 50, uiless thesa costs are jncurrsd o produce
inventanes, and

. f=sg any |l=a5e ncantives received.

® B & =

Right-af-uss assets ars subeeguenlly measured at cosl less accumilaled depraciation and Impairment lossas

Right-al-use assets are depreclatad over the shorer pened of lease term and wsetul life of the undarlying asset However, ita
lesse transfars ownership of the underying asssl or fhe cost of the dahl-ohuse azsal raflscts that the company expects fo
suemiss a purchase option, the related rignt-of-use assat s depreciated over the useful Iife of the underlying assat
Depreciation starts at the cormmancement date of oleass

Tre resrdusl valus, useful ife and depracistion method of each assat ale raviswsd &) the end of 2ach reporting yeat | the
axpacialions differ from pravious estimales. he thange |8 accounted for prospectvely a3 8 changs i accounting astimats
Ezch part ofa right-of-iss assst with & cost that s signiticant in ralation to the total cost of the asssl is depreciated separstaly.

Tha deprsiation aharga for aach yaar s mongnited in iess or |oss unless I fs included |n the carrying amount af another
assel

110 Share capital and equlty

An squity tistrameant s any, cantract that evidences: a residusl intersst in the: asasts of an entily afier deducing afl' of it
liatilitiss

Ordirary shares ane roccgnised =t par value and tlassified a5 ‘shara capial in equity, Any emounts receved from the issue of
shares in sxcess of par valus ls classified as'share prasmlunt’ in sguily

Dividands are recognized a5 aliatility n the company in which they are declared,

1.11 Employee benelits

Short-tarm amployes benefits

The cost of shart-term amployes banefils, (hose payable within 12 manths afiar the service w enderad, such 33 pald vasation
lzave and sick leave, bonlses and non-monstary benefits such a5 madical darg), are recagnided in the period | which the

sarvice s rendered and are not discounted,

Tha expectod cost of componsaled absanczes [§ recognisad 55 an expanss 55 (he aviployess idndar sanvicas thal incraase
thelt entitlgmenl ar, o the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absenge accurs

The expected coal of loss shanng and bonus peyments |8 recognised s 8n expenss Whan There s 3 Bgal of constiuclive
oblmation tomake such payments as a rosult of past performanca.

Defined contribution plans
Payimdnts (o defined ooltribution retirsinent benedil plank are charged as an sxpanse a8 thay &l dis

Payinants made to [ndustry-managed (ot state plans) netirement benafit schames are dealt with as defined contribution plans
whera the comparny's obligation Undar the schemas 1= equivalant to those aieing in 2 defiried cantibullon fetramant barehl

plan,

The eompany also operales a defined contribution pensian schema for specilic emplavess Employar and ampliyes cantibuts
10% of the basic satary. The ausets of this scheme are hetd in & separale frustee agministared fund which is funded by
paymants fram both the smployess 2nd the company.
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1.11 Empioyes bensMits (continuaed)

The company and 15 employess also contribute to the National Social Seeurity’ Fund (NSSF), a national defined cantributidn
scheme. Gantnbutions ars datermined by jocal statute and the company's contributions are charged o the Statement of Profit
or Loas and Other Comprahens|ve Incama In the year they fall due

1.12 Impalrment of assets

The company sss2s38s 8l each and of e regorting penod whathar thara s any indicanan (hat an assaet may be imoaiad
any suah indisstion exists, Iha company estimatas tha rateverabls amount of the assay

Irreapactive of whalhar thare s-any ndication of impsirment, the comparny also
. tpzie Intanglble assats with an indefinde ussiul life or intangible asssis nol yel available lor use for impairmant
annually by somparing ls carying amount with |is recovgrable amounl This impalrmanl isst s pararmed durieg ths
annual paricd and at the same Gme avary panod.
= =tz goodwill acguired n 2 business cambination for impalment annually

It thereis any indicalion that an assel may be inpaired, the recoverable amoupt 13 estimated for the indiviowal ssset 1Fd s
passible to estimate tha recoverable amaunt of the indidual assall the recoverable amourt of (he cash-ganerating umt o
which the gsest balonns is dotarmingd.

Tha retowarahle amount of an asset or 3 cash-genesating unil is the Righer &f its fair value l2ss costs o sell and (15 valus n
usa.

If the recoverabls amount of ah 3532l 5 Jes3 than s carying amount. fhie canying amount of the azsal ls reduced B i
reoovarable amount. That reduction is an impairmant lozs '

An impairment o83 of assefs carniod at cost le38 any accumiulated depreciation o amaitfEaton is ieaogrised immedialely in
Inas or loss Any impairmant loss of & revalued assal (s ireated 33 3 i@vajuation decreass,

An antity assessis at sach reporting dote whather lhers is any Indicatitn (hsl sn'impairment loss recognisad In origr pariads far
assats other than goodwill may no longer 2wst or may have decreasad. If any such indication extsts, tho regoverable amounts
of thos= assets are estimated

The increasad carrying amount of 2n assat other han goodwill atinbutable to & reversal of an imparment loss doss not excead
the carrying amount that wauld have been datenmined had no impainment loss been recogmsed for the asset in prior periads.

A revarsal of an impalrment loss of assets carned 3l cos! Jess acoumulsled deprediation or amortization othar than geodwill is
recogiised mmedisisly. i loss or lose Any reversal of 8 impajmment lesg of & evalued assel i@ (reated as a revaluation
increase )

1.13 Provisions and conlingenciss
Frovisions sra recognised when'
s the company has a pressnt obiigadion as a resull of & past avant,
. il is probable that an outflow of resources embpdying sconomic Bapsfis will e reguirsd to ssttke me-obligation; and
. a religtle estimate can be made of the abligation
The amount pf a provision 15 the presant value of the expenditurs expectod to be required o sattle the obligation.
Whera soma of all of the sxpanditure required 1o setfls & movisian |5 axpected (o be reimbursad by another party. tha
reimbrursement shall be recognizaa wnen, and anly whan, it is virually caran hat reimbursemant will be recewved I the aptity
sallles the pbligalion, The relmbumseman shall be tealed as & saparale assal The amount recognised for Ihe eimbursemant
shall not excasd the armount of Iha provisian. )
Provislone ars not racognisad for lulura oparating loeses

Comtmgant assets antd contingent Imbihtles are not recaghtsed, Contingennies are disslosed mnote 31
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Significant Accounting Policies

1.14 Revenue

Revenue i recognised rom contracts with cuntomears undsr the soops of IFRS 16 as || transfars sevicss o dustonrars sl 6n
ameunt that reflects tha considesation to which the Company expects to be entitied o0 axchange forthoss services The five
step approach s applled fo reveniue recognition under |FRS 16, Revenue i= recopnised when a performanca obligation 14
satislied by offaring 3 promised Sssal to tha custormar or parforriing the pramisad safvice, Cantral includss the abilily to
prevent others fram directing the use of and cbizinipg the penelits  om the assel I wa do nol satisly owr pedormance
otligation over lime, It salfshzs (L ata polnt in Yme and revenue will be recognised whan control 15 passed or ssrvice petformed
2t that point in tima. '

Ravenus |8 recognis=d using (he 5 step model as defined baiow

*  idenlify the contract with tho customars — this would be a mater of Bw bul callsction nseds to be probsble, has 1o
have commercial substance, rghls to sarvices and payment obligations can be identfied ana that both partias ars
cammitted 1o thair abhgations;

. igentify the parformance obligations - whars thers are multiple gerformancs obiligationa. an assassmant s raquired
whisthiar thasa can ba separately arjayed and If a0 maed 1o ecognised as suth,

= determine the lransaction prics — & sk of revernue revarsal as wall as a signdicant finance companent nesd o bs
faciored in,

=  allocat= the fransaction price — the transacllon price nesds (o b2 allocalsd to he performancs obiflgatinrs This must
be gone wming stand alons salling pricss to thes sxent that they are avaidabla |n the absancs of these an expacied
cost plus margn or markat-assessment approach |5 1o be yssd) o

. repognise revenug whan the enlity satisfies a parformancs obligation. Indicators of this @ @ presant obligation to
pay. physicsl possession, legal tills risk and fewsrds and accoplancs. I these erisria e met over time  than
allonation can be done using an ohjective allocebon mathod basad on inputs on QEipukE:

Tha company rfecognises rovenue from sanvices upon pedormance of tha transactions and recognition n the Cental
Depository Systam. The company recognines myenus as-and whan | aatahiss a pedformance obligation by transfermng control
of a sanvice to 5 customer. The amount of revenus recogmsed Is the amount the company expacts to recelve In assodance
with the tetmis of 1ha contracy, and exaludes amounts collactad on bahall of Ihird parties; such as Value Added Tax
Transaction, depository and bond levy inzome

Transaction levy Income & recognisad Lpon somplation of aquity and bond ransastions n the Central Cepository System
Thare is no variable alafiant o he contract prica and paymean| Is ypisally due within 30 daya of parfrmmanca af tmding

Other Income

Interest meome 15 racoansed on a tme propertion basis using the effective interest method, Once a inancial assat s dantified
a3 predit-impaired, the effective interes! e 1 applsd lo e amaorised cosl (nel of impairment Insses) in subsaguenl repoiing
parinds

1,15 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foresgn cumencies dunng (he year are convered inlo Kanya Shillings (the functional clirrency). 8t this rales
ruling & tha ramesclion dales

At ths and of sach reporting perod, moneiary ilems denominated n [oreign currenoes are reiransfatad al (he rates pravaling
o that date. Mon-monetary tems camed at fir vaiue that are donomnatod n fargign currenclas are retranslatad af he ralas
provailing at the date whon the fair value was datermined. Mon-manetary [lms (hal are messured in lsrms of stencal cost in
a foreign currency are translatad using the exchange rafes ai the dates of the intisd transactions.

The rasulting diffsrsncas rom sattlemant and ransiation are dealt with (n profit or lese in the year in which they anse
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2. Mow Standards and Interpratations
2.1 Standards and interpratations effective and adepted in the eurrent year

In the currsn! y=ar, the company has adapted the follewing standards and interpretations that ate eleclive for the surrant
firanaial year and that are relavant to itz oparstions.

Defarrad lax related to assels and labllities arising trom a single transaction - Amendments to |AS 12

The amendimeant arids an addillonal requitemeant for transactions which will mat give rigs te tha recognition of a doferrsd tax
assat or Habllity on Irital recogniion.  Praviously, deferred fax would not be recoanisad on the initial recognitien of an assat or
ligbility in a transachon which 18 not 3 business combinpinon -and at the fime of the jansaction affecis naiher agoouniing profit
bf loss. The addilignal requirement providas that the transaction, al the Lims of the transaction must not give risz o sgual
taxable and deductibla tamparary diffesencas.

The effective date of the amendment is %ar y=ars beginning on or after January 1, 2023,

The company has adopted tha amendment for the fimt tmaan the 2023 annual finandial statements:

Thie impact of s amsndmant 5 not matEal

Disclosure of accounting policies: Amendmentsa to IA5 1 and IFRS Practice Stalamant 2

IAS 1 was amanded 1o require thal only matorial sccountinig policy Ibformation shall ba disclossd in the annusl fnanscial
siatsmants The amendmanl will Aol resull in changes (o maasurement or ecoondion of financial stolement lems. but
managamant will undergo 2 review ol aocounting polices fo 2nsure [hat anly matensl accounting policy infurmation &
disnlosad

The effeclive date of the amendment 15 for y2ars baginmng on or afar JJenuary 1, 2003

The company has adopind the armendmant for the first ima in the 2023 annual inanclsl s1atEments

Tha Impact al the amendm=nl is 1ot matssal,

Definition of accounting estimates: Amendmeants to 1AS 8

The defimtion of accounting estmates was amended =0 tha! accounting estmates are now dafined as "manatary EmMounts in
annual firancial statements thet mrs subjact ta measuramant uncerizinty ™

The effactiva date of the amandmant s far yaaes baginning on or aftar Jenuary 1, 2023

The company has adopled (he armendinent fof the fest ims n the 2023 anaual inancial statemenis.

The impact of tha amendment is not metemal,

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Currant - Amendment to 1AS 1

The amendment changes the regquiremants to classify & ebility &5 currant of non-currant. |1 an antity has the right at the ond of
the reporing peried. to defer settlemant of a lability for at least twelve months after the reporting penod, then the: hability is
classified as non-cumant

11 Whis fight s sutysct o cifititions mpused on the entity, then the fght only sxists, i, at the end of the reporting penod, the
anlity has comphiad with those conditions.

I addition, the clasdification is not affected by the lkslihood that the entity wil sxmrizs its right 1o defer setilement. Therefare,
if the right exists, tho liability |s classified 88 non-current avan I mansgamant inhends or espests 1o sentle (ks Gability within
twalva months of the reporting panod, Addbonal declosures would be: required m such circumstanoes

The affectiva date af the nmenidinen| is far ysars baginnieg on or sfter Jenuary 1, 2023

The company has adopted the amendmant for the first time in the 2023 annual financlal statements
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2. Now Standards and Interprotations {continued)
The impact of the amandmest £ ol matsnal
2.2 Btandards and (nterpratations not yat affective

The company has chossn mit 1o uaz_'r} adopt e fellowng standards and intespratations, which have been published and sre
mandatary far (ke dompany's acaounung penods beqlnaing on or after Japuary 1, 2024 or later perinds.

Lack of exchangeability - amendments to 1AS 24

The-amendments apply fo currencies which are niot exchangeshle The definition of exchangssabls 18 provides a3 bang when
an antity = able o ocbiain the oiher curgney within a tme framea thal allows for a narmal administrative delay and through a
mdrket or axshango mechanist In ‘which an axchange tranksaclion would créste snforcsable rights and cblinalions. The
amendments require an 2nlify, Io astimats the spot exchange rats 6t measuramant dato when a currancy 15 not exchangeatia

Intp ancther currency. Additional disclosures ars also reguired fo envable wsers of Anancial statements (o understand the
impact at tha non-exchangeability an financial performhance, financial position and cash Hew

The effective date of the amandmenl (2 for years beginning on ot aftae Janiary 1, 2025

The comgany xpects to adopt the amendment for the first tme ip the 2025 apnoat financial statameants

It & unlinely that the amanament will hava a maisrial impact on the company's annual financial statemonts.

Supplier financa arrangementsa - amendmaents o 1AS 7 and [FRS 7

The amendment applies o circumstances where supplier finance srangements sxisl These are armangsmants wharetby
finance providgers pay the supplisrs of the entity, thus providing ths antity with oxtanded payment terms or the suppliers with
edrly paymant lerms. Th= enftity than pays the linance providers tased an ther specific mrms and conditiong  The amendmant
requires the disclosurs of informalion about suppliar finance armangamaents thal enalle users of financial statements o assess
the officcts of those arrangements on the antity's lizbililes and cash Aows 58 wall 33 an the sntily's sxposire To lgUidity risk
The effectiva date of the amandment i lor years beainning on or alizer January 1, 2024,

Thie company expects fo adopl the amendmaeant for the frst time i the 2024 apnoal ﬁnanr;ia.l' stataments

i1 15 unlikely that the amaendment will have-a meienal impect on the company's annial francal slatemams

MNon-current labllities with covenants - amondments Lo 1AS 1

The amendment applies to the classification af llabilities with loan covenants as current ar nan-currant. I an antity has the rght
to defer sattlamant of a lisbility Tar st jzast welve months after tha reporting pasiod, but subjsot to aonditions, than the tming of
the required conditions impacts whather the entity has a night to cofer sottlement. If the conditiens must be compliad with af or
before (e reporting data, then they affect whathar the rights to dafer setilemeni exisls at reporting date, However, if tha antity
fs dnly reguired to cemply with the condiions afier the mporting petiod, then Ihe conditions da not affect whather tha right 1o
daler settemant ests at repoding date: I an entity classifies a liability &3 non-current whan the condiiions ass only required
be mist after the raporting pariad, then additional distlosures are regquired to 2nable the usars af financial statements to
Undietstand tha'risk that the'llablitiss could bacome rapayabls within wale manths aflee e réparting pariod

The effectiva date of the amendmenl i lor years beginning on or altep Japuary 1, 2624

The company expecis to adopt the amendment far the first tme in the 2024 anpnual financial statements

it is unlikely that the amandmant will have & matsnal impact on the company's anndal financial slEtemants:

Lease llability in a sale 2nd lsasaback

The amendment requires that a seller-lesses in a sale and |esseback transaction, shall deteming sass paymeants’ or 'rensed
teass paymanta’ in & way that the saller-lesses wolld not recegrss any amounl of (he gain of loss thal rlates ko the right of
usa retained by ihe sallor-losses

The gffpctiva dale of the amandment is for ydars beginning on or after January 1, 2024
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2.  Mew Standards and Interpretations (continued)
The camipany sxpechs o adopt s @mendmant for the lirst Umein the 2024 annual Inancial statameanks

It Is unlikaly that the amendmant will have a materal Impact on the company’s annual firancial statements.
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Figums iy Shkillings 2023 2022
).  Ravenus
Revenus from contracts with customers
Transadiion ey 105,306,613 160,382 577
C=pasiiony vy 16,358,750 15,608,740
Band levy 6,445,106 14,808,066
Private transles lass and othar lavias 43,000,173 15,562,585
171,308,942 196,452,958
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in ime
Transachon lavy 105,500,913 160,382,577
C=pasitary lavy 18,356,760 15,698,740
Bood vy 65,445 108 14,808,088
Privats transfer bees and other levies 43,000,173 15,552,535
171,308,942 196,452,958
4,  Other incoms
Rantal incame 3,646,432 -
Bud dadts racoversd 518,624 1,228 572
Managamant and anlitement fees J3,076.7116 13.60.3581
37,240,777 14,388,923
5. Profit on disposal of assets and subsidiary
Proparty and aquiprmant 14 13 062 {40 388)
[Pvestments n subsidanss 17 - 7,128,580
13,082 T.0B8, 591
6. Administralive sxpensas
Stalf costs (Note 9) 103,867,281 129,120,482
Ditselor's remiunerabon 14,284 038 19.972.516
Talephonos and postages 511,194 1,035,884
Entartainmant and traveting 2,131,155 233,993
Hoard and commitize allewances - 171,470
Prirting and stationesy 816,765 121418
Advertiging and marketing expensus 4,200,285 4 036,178
Computir expanses 57,052,180 45,835 818
Auditor's remunsration 2 987,080 2,738 460
Legal and professional fees 1,647,828 4,091,347
Bark ahiarges 453,795 125 592
Subscriptions-and penodicats 872,083 1.741.480
Giffice running axpenses 1,272,284 787 818
Firnzs and penaltise 150,000 -
192,206,648 222,981,142
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7. Operaling expenses

Short tarm lease rent 2435342 2,164 965

Ssrvies charge and parking less 7,280 5458 4912 188

Elaninnity and wates 2,624 £63 1,875,234

Fapairs and malntanancs 1473236 5514354

Ingurarce B,380.038 SR Ova

Licencas 3,545 135 4,834,118

Seurily 1,130,778 1200177

Dapracation on right of Uss assats (Nale 15) 10,682,708 14,583,840

Dopracation an proparty and squipmant (Mot 14) 18871211 22.822.245

Amartisabon af intangible assats (Noe 16) 18,788,315 18.273.758

Foreign axchanas loss (below) 3,343,005 1,018,509

76,866,375 84,265,540

Realisad exchanae foss 3,348,008 1,078 8839

8. Voluntary axils expanse

Voluntzry x| expenne - 61,478 243

&, Staff costs

Solares and wages 103.107 382 134,824,283

Stafl medical and walfare expensss f, 162,201 3,731 487

Dther siaff axnantos 9852 555 15537218
120,222,219 160,092,998

Staff employed during the year

Adminigtration 1 41

10, Investment lncome

Intereal incoms

Irlerest (neoms on fixed deposits and current account SR2 847 10,013,806

Interest indoma on govermmant bonds 13,238,960 13187 A79

Total interest income 13,818,897 23,201,575

11. Finange costs

fntarast on lease llooiities T.a88818 6 686437
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12, Taxation
Major components of the tax Income
Currant
Losal income tax - current yaar 1,268,814 3,004,105
Deforred
Dalpired tax - current year (13,004,614} {26,842, 552}
{12.635.800) (23,838, 4437)
Reconciliation of the tax expenssa
Reconclotion batwesn accounting loss snd (ax sxpariss
Accaunting loss (55,580, 740) (131.211,734)
Tax ol the applicable tax rate af 30% (2022 30%) (16,970 923) ;33,35'9,4 18)
Tax effect of adjustmonts on taxable Income
Expenses nat deduciible for tax purposss 1,882 388 3,349,732
Inceima not subjact o fax (4,118,737) {8.09% 048)
Civer provision of prior year defzmed tax B451.471 14 560,293
(12,553,800) (23,838 ,443)
11. Tax pald
Balance af Laginning of the year 52,295,940 45,000,512
Cuprant iz far the year rozsanised in prolil or loss (1,768.814) {3,004 109)
Baancs ot and of the ysar {52,265, 14T) (52 285 840)
(1,238,021) {6,299,537)
14, Properiy and egquipment
2023 2022
Cost ar Accumuizted Camying valuo Cost or Accumulated Carrying valus
revaluation  depraciation rewvaluation  deprecation
Furniturs. fittings and eguwpmant 4,071,006 [3,875,278) 185,727 4,071,008 (3,818, 0EE) 454,938
Motiar vehicles 130,800 {130,800 : 130.800 (130,200} _ =
Offica equipmeni § 264,474 (7,460 118 g4 158 5,338,354 (8,934,985} 1,403, 988
Carnputsr, fax and copsrs 116,069,260 ([115,653.648) 4058711 116200, 70 (102, 7TBG4TH) 13417302
Leasshoid mprovaments 25,437,268 (5,411,751 20625517 24722840 (3,284, 737) 21604903
Total 165,072,908 (133,541.887) 21,601.011 153,544,280 (116,763,169) 35,781,111
Roconciliation ol properly and eguipmeant - 2023
Halance as 31 Additions Disposals.  Deprocigfion  Salancs at 31
1ot Janudey Decamber
Fumiture, fittngs and equipmant 454 G134 - - (258.211) 195,727
Dlfica aquipmant 1,403,958 25520 - {625,332) 304,156
Computer, fax srid dopisrs 13,417 302 - (42,037 12,968 654) 405611
L passhold mprovaments 21,504,503 1.637 628 . (3.117.074) 0026517
36,781,111 1,663,148 (42,037) (16,871,211) 21,531,011
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14, Proparty and equipment {continued)
Reconciliation of property and squipment - 2022
Balance sz at  Additions Disposals  Degraciation Balanca at'3y
_ 18! January Decsmber
Fumniturs. fittings and aguipmart 730 488 - = (275,550) 454,533
Office eqlipmant 1,085,457 1,425 195 (217,113 1309, 771) 1,403 9658
Computer; fax and copiars 31,756,058 240,057 - (1B587.807) 13417302
Leasehold Improvemeants 23,333,908 1,229 112 - (304807 21,504,803
55,806,111 2,314,358 (217.113) [22,822,245) 38,781,110
Fully deprociatad assate still use
Computer, fax and copiers 47,158 908 a7 256,805
iz aquipmsnt 5,116,664 4.291,833
Molor vashicles 130,800 130 800
Furmitore, fitings and squipman| 1,832,583 1,632,582
54,437 052 53,812,031
15. Right-of-use assats
Met carrying amounis of right-of-use asseis
Offica spaca 39.354,705 0337413

Thae company leases offices and starsge sgmaces. The |eased offices ano storsge spoces ans typically Tor perods of balvesn 2
and & years, with an oplion tn rsrsw, None of the lewsss conlaing any restictions or covenants other than the protastve nghts
if the liessar or carmess a rasidusl value quarantss.

Depreciation recagnised on right-of-use assets
Diaprociation recognizad on each class of nght-ofuse assels, 15 presented below. It includes deprscigtion which has bean

axpansad in ihe tolal daprecialion clharge in profil or Ioss (note 7), as well as depresation which has besn capilalissd to the
cast of other assats.

Depraciallan an right-ol-use ausats 10.582. 708 14 683 640
Othar disclosures
Inlaragr expanss on lease latilllise | (Noke 23) 7.888918 66480 437

The campany leases affices fnd storage spaces. Tha lagsad offices and storage spaces ars typicslly for pariods ol between 2
and & years, with an option to renaw, None of tho |eases coptaing any restrictions or covenants ather than the protachve nghts
of the leesor or carries a fesidual valus gusrantss

16, Intangible assets

2023 2072
Cogt ) Azoumulated Carying valus Cosl! Apcumulaiad  Carrying valus
Valuaton amuortisation Valiiation amartisation )
Websita £,924 615 {4,024 615) - 4 924 515 {4,824 815) -
Computsr software 271.532.978 (128)199.048) BI.333.032 T11.E32678 (108410531} 103132447
Total 216,457,593 (133,123,661) 83,333,932 216,457,591 (113,335146) 103,122,447
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16. Intangible assets (continued)

Roconciliation of intangible assets - 2G2)

Opaning Amiarisatian Talal
balancs
Compuler software 03, 722407  [15.7A8.515) 83,333,832
Reconciliation af Intangible assats - 2022
Opanmg Additons Amaitsation Total
_ bialance
Compliter scfwats 101,750,753 19833412 (18.271,718) 103,122,447
Fully armotised intangible assets still in use
COBC websils and projzct 44 F5RE, 74 A4 BOB T4
Computer sofware 21,477,540 18,847,120
G5 176,374 63 645 BS54
17, Investment in subsidiary
MName of company % S Carrying Carrying
holding holding amount 2023 amount 2022
2023 2022
COSC Nominess Limitad 100,00 % 10000 % 20,000 203, 000

The printipal ackvitiss of the subsidiay s o provids share egistrar ssrvices o vanbus companiss listed on the varlous
sgcurties edchanges, commissons and administration of finencial marksts, tresis funds and similar financial senvices. seourity
and commedity santract brokemgs and holding of sompanies monatary mtermadiation

Thesssults for tha subsdiary, COSC Nominses Limiied have nol besn consaidatad in this financial statamants sincs the antity
was cansitdered (0 be dormant.

18. Investmant in governmant securities-Moasured through FVOCTI

Goverrmant of Kenya infrastructire bonda 95 088 171 100 841 855
Invesiment in govermnmant securities Batanco at 1st Furchased Valuation Total
measured at fair valua through ather January during the adjustment

comprehensive income y=ar

Govemmant of Kenya Infreztructure bonds 100,841,855 - (5.783,684) 95 (158,171

The fair values of government securities calssified ' Falr valus through other comprehensive incame” are financial assats
recogrised under Lavel 1 bazsd on information sat oul (n the accaunting policy

N
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18, Deferred tax

Dfarr=d oy g6t BE B30 839 BJ.855 1B5

Reconciliation ol deferred lax assal

At beginning of year 53,855,165 25,342 473
Proparty. =gulpmant 2nd Intenolbls assats 2,351 098 1,677,700
Impairment provison 741.874 (1.788,8456)
Aight 1o use of assels 3394 812 4405 182
Lease |[iahilibies (2.730718) (34681751
Gratuity provisan (1,800.461) hRT 532
Oifer provision/remassuramant (4,588 850) [14,532,635)
Tax ioszas 23,0688, 142 39,452 B58
O pravision of defaimed tax 0 pnor y2ar (5.451.470) =
Fair value adjustman {870,140 B70, 140

BB, 668,639 53,655,165

20. Trade and other recoivables

Financial instramants:

Accotnts recsivalles 18,0494 378 17,688, 354

Ratsiyahls from rolated partiss (Note 28) 85815 B0
Expcted cradit joss (8.432.851) (3,801,380
Nt aceounts snd olher radsivablas 11747 340 13.868 564
Prepayments: 48 537 67R 21,057 4681

Oiher recsivables 19,883,799 13,906,598
Total accounts and other receivables 80,173,768 48,922,623

Expoaure to aredit rigk

Accounts recaivabliey Inharently expose the comparny to credit rish, baing Lhe risk thal the company will ncur finanos] loss if
customess fal o make payments & they & due,

In arder to mitigats: the gk of nancial loss from defzults, e company anly deals with raputabls custamars with consisiant
payment nistores, Each customer i anolysed individually for creditworthiness bafare terms and conditfons - are. offarsd,
Stallstical eradit seving models am usad 1o aralyse oustomers These models maks use of information submitted by the
tustomers 38 wizll 35 external buread data (where available) Customer eredil limis ars in place and are réviswed and
approved by credil management commilines. The exposura to cradit sk and tha creditwonthiness of customears, % continuously
maonitored

Thare haye bean no significant changes n the cradit risk manageman! policies and processes since the prior reporting panod.

Accounts recaivables relats primarnily (o conlracted payments dus [or Naitobi Securliss Exchangs tranzactians from tha Cendral
Depositary Agents. The directors are of the-opnian that the company’s expesum I limited becausa the dobt s widely neld.
Thers |s also no algnificant concantration of credi rek

The average credit panod on Ascadnts recevables 1s 90 days (2022 90 days): No inferest is charged on outstanding accounts
recehahles

Credit |osses allewance is recognised for all accounts recevables, in accordance with IFRS 2 Financial Instroments -and i
monitored at the end df sach reporong perod. I0 addition 1o the lass allowance, acoounts recelvables e woitten off when trere
is no reasonable expestaiion of recovery, for example; when a debior hes bean placed under liguidation. Agcounls mecsivabies
which have besn wiilten off ars not subject te enlorcement activities.

a2
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20. Trade and other raceivables {cantinuad)

The compamy measures he lass allowance for accounts recenvablas by applying the simplified approach which |5 prasanped by
IFRS 9, In accardance with this approdeh, the less allowance on accounts rocaivables = determined as he expecled credil
losses on accounts receivables Thess sxpecied ciadil losses are estimated using @ provision matrix, which |z prasanisd
below. The provision matrix has besn developed by making use of past defalit sxperience of debtors but also ncorporates
Iorwvard looking |nformztion ang genersl sconemic conditions of the mduatry 4s atthe eporing dala

Therg has baen no changs In the estimation techrigues or significant assumptions mags duting the current rapatting panod
The company & fustoncal credit loss expenonce does nat show significantly differant |oss pamems for differeat customsr

segments. The provislon for credit losses Is therafone based on past due stalus withou| disaggregating tio furthar risk profiles
The less alldwanns providian is datermined as follows:

2023 2023 2022 2022
Grogs Expesied Erpss Expactod
CaTYIng eredit loss camying cradit loss
amaunt aAmoynis
Expected credil loss rate:
Not past dus 3,639 (2022 6.57%) 5,636,364 (233,832 5826312 (243 813)
31 - 50 days pasl dun 5.05% (2022 2.08%) 357,053 {345 352 1.654,728 [77,985)
B1 - 80 dayg pas| dus 17 60% (2022 3.11%) 1.062.501 [1,13Z.380) 2,384 903 {118,275)
Onvar 90 days past dus. T2.T0% (2022 BB.27%) 11,028,458 (4,741,267) T.f03.411 (3,365,516)
Total 18,084,378 [6,432.861) 17,669,354 (3.801,390)
Analaysis of supected cradit loss
Opening balance in acecordance with IFRS 3 Financial Instrumanis: 13,801,390) [32.455,722)
Reeognition and Measuramant
Amaounis regoversed 516,629 .
Provision raissd on new lrade reacaivables {3,150,020; 2073674
Pravicions raversed on forfoited recelvable fram COSC regiktrars - 25640 BS54
Balance as at 31 December (2022: 315t December) 16,432,851} (3,801,380)

Exposure to currency risk

Hefar to note 27 for details of currency nsk managamant for acoounts receivablas
Fair value of sceounts and other recaivablos

Tha falr value ol trade and olhar recalvables approximates thair carmylng smounts,
21, Cash and bank balances

Cashand bank balances consist of

Cash in hand 70,000 0,000
Bank batancss 19,774 558 45 795 388
Expectad gredit loas allowsnce {123,683) (262 242]
18,720,905 45,583,148
Cash and bank balanges 19,844 588 45,885 383
Movemant in expectid cradit lass during e year (123.893) {282 242)
15,730,905 45,583,146

Ex



Central Depository and Settlement Corporation Limited
arnual Finanoe! Statemants-for the yaor ended December 31 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figuras in Shillings 2033 2022

21. Cash and bank balances [continued)

Analysis of expecied cradil loss 2023 2022

Al start ol the yadr (2B2.242) (1.604,721)
Aecoveries - 1,226,572
Movament in expected cradil loas during the year 158544 85307
At the end of yoar (123,683) (282,242)
Exposure to currency risk

Rafsr (o note 37 Financial instruments snd fineno:al nsk managemant for datals of currenoy. risk managamant for cash and
barik balances.

22, Share capital

Authorised

1,750,000 Ordinary shares of KES 100/= g3zh 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued

1.750.000 Ordingry shares of KES 1006= eagh 175,000,000 175,000,000

23. Lamsaliabilitias

The movement in lease liabllity is as lollows

Al Janaary 2,481 121 T4.0471.718
Cpzning palance adjestmant - (#,361,947)
Inlaisst an lzasa liakily 7.888 918 9,058,384
Leass paymanty (17.001.315) {18.257.034)
At snd of year 51178724 2481121
Man-current ishilifies 42,054 574 53,206,529
Currant iabilities 11,214,150 0274192

53,378,724 62,481,121

The svarage lease lemm was 2- 6 years and the mverage m_u'urnamul bromravwing rale was 13% (2022 13%)

MNona of fie leasas conlams any restrcliona or covenants other han the proEoive rights of the lgssor o cames § reydual
wvalle guaranitos

24, Trade and other payables

Financial instruments;

Arccounis payables 58,769 928 3,988 265
Acoruals and provisions 10,723,436 36,845,273
Du= |o ralated parlies [Note 26) B.AM 217 7.171.304

74,293,581 48,016,842

Exposurs lo currency risk

Rafar 1o note 27 Finaacial instrumeants ana financial risk maragemeant for detoils of curmoncy nsk management lor accounts

payables
Exposure to liguidity nsk

Refar lo nole 27 Finanaal Instrumants gnd Snancial risk management for detalls of liquldity rsk sxposure gnd mianagemisnit
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222

24, Trade and other payables (continued)

Exposure to interast rata risk

Rafarto note 27 Finanoial instrumants and financal nek management for details ol intEras) ate bG8k managsment for trades ana

other payablas:

Fair valuo of accounts and othar payables

Tha falr valus of trada snd alhiEr payvablss approgirmates halr carrying amounts
25, Cash used in operations

Loss bafore [axaton

Adjustments for:

Gain an disposily

Dapraciation apd impairment on propsry ang espprmant
Lepraciation on right of uss assats
Amortisation of inangible asgets

Mel movemant m expaated cradil ioss allowanca
Intarestincoime

Changes in working capital:

Trate and othar recoivablos

Tradse and othar payables

28, Related parties
Related party balances

Balances due from relatad parties
COSRC Buarant=a Fund

Balances due to related parties
COSC Mominses Limiled

CDSC Gurantes Fund

Malrobi Securities Exchange Plc

Compensation to directors and othar Key management
Directors remunersbon

(565897400 (131,211,734)
{13,082) {7.088,591)
15.671.211 22,873,245
10,842,708 14,683,940
19,788,515 18,271,718
3,150,000 (2.873,674)
13,819,897 23,201 575
(44.401.235) 76,038,546
25,277,739 881,835
(93,877) (27,373,140
85,815 500
20,000 20,000
16,582 50,000
6,763,835 7108 304
6,800,217 7,175,304
10,254,838 30,972,516

Centra! Depository and Sattlement Corporation Limited is the fund administratar for Central Depasitory Satlement Corparation
Guarantes Fund Limited, Central Depasitory Setilsmant Corporation Limitad s controlled by Capial Marksts Challenge fund
who own S0%: of lhe company's shares. The rest of the shares ame hald By Mairobi Stock Exchanga, AKS Nominges, Capilal
Markets Investar Compensation Fund and Ugands Seourities Exchangs who own 22.5%, 18%. 7% and 2 5% respettivaly,
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27. Financisl ingtruments and risk managemenl
Categorles of Hinancial instruments
Categories of financial assals
2029
Male{s] Fairvalue Amerfisad cosl Total Fair value
Ihfough attar
comprehen-
ilve incoms -
bt
Ingtrurnants
Dbl ingtruments at fair valise through athar 18 a5,a58,171 - B5DEB 171 95058171
comprahEnslva incorms
Trade and ather receivables 20 - 80,173,763 B0,173 768 B0, 173,768
Cagh and cash equivalents 21 = 19,720,805 18, 720.805 15,720,905
45,058,171 23,884,573 154,052,344 184,952,844
2022
Mol#{s] Fair vaiua:  Amortised dos! Tatal Fair valls
through athar
LOMprahan-
dive [heoms -
e
istrumenis
Debtinstruments at fair valos rough atnar 18 100,841,855 = 100847855 100.641.8B55
coinprelienslve incoma )
Trade and ather receivables 20 - 48422833  48522.023 458,942,823
Cash and cash-equivalents 21 - 45583148 45583145 45583148
100,841,855 84 505769 195347624 195,147 524
‘Categories of finmncial labilities
2023
Nolss) Amortised cost Leasos Tot Fair valus
Aocounts and oller payables 24 74,293 583 - 74,183,583 T74,2B3 583
Lssas liabilites 21 - B3 3TRTRE BIATR T4  B24R1.121
74,293,583 S33ITH,724 127672007 136,774,704
2022
Mote{s) Amortised cosl Leaszsas Tatnl Fair walua
Accounts 2nd olher payables 24 48,015,544 - ABMM5E4d 48,015 44
Laase liabifities 23 - G2.481.121 82,481 11 62,481 11
46,015,644 G2 481,121 110,496,365 910,496,985
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27. Financlal Instruments and risk management (continuad)
Capital risk managemsni

The tompany's objactive whan managing capital (which inclugss share capitsl, Dorrowings, working capilal snd cash and cash
equivalants) is to mamtain 8 flexible capital structure that reduces the gest of capital to an acceptable level of risk and to
safaguard the company's shility to conlinua 2= 2 golng concam whlle taking advantage ol strategic appardunities in ordar to
madimise slakaholder returne sustainably,

The company managss capital structure 3hd makas adjustments fo It in light of ehargas In asontmic conditions and Lhe fsk
charactaristics of the underlying sssets. In order lo maintain the: cepital structure, compary midy adjus! the amount of dvidends
paid o the sharpholder, retum caplal ta tha shareholdar, reputchase shares cumantly issued, ssue new sharss, Ssus new
dabl, Issim now datt 1o mplan:.u axisting dabt wilh diffsrant chm-:tans!m apdior sall assels o raduce dabl

Finaneial risk managemeant
Owarview

The gompany I3 exposed to tha fllawing risks from 8 uss af finamial Instumanis:
*  Credit nsk:
= Liguidity nsk and
. Markat rigk [currancy risk, int2rest rafe risk and grice risk).

The board al directors has overall responsiblity for the astabiishmant and bversight of the company'e risk managsmant
framework. The board has established ngx commitied, which is responsible for doveloping and monitoring 1o COMPaENyY's
risk managemant polisies. The committes repors quartetly to the-board of diretitars on s aclivilias

The company's nsk mansgemen) pofices are-esmiblshed w dentify and anelyse the rsks laced by e compsany, 1o set
apprapriale risk limits and conwls, and to menitar rsks and sdherencs to imits. Risk managamant prilcies and syslems e
reviewed raguiary to reflect changes in markst conditions and the company's sotivities.

Credit risk

Cradit nsk s the ngk of bnancal [oss 10 1he company f 8 customer of counsrpay 1o & nancial mstrumeant faits fo masl s
cantractual obligations.

The company is exposad 1o crodit fisk on trade and gther receivables and cash and cash equivalants.

Cradgit fsk axposure griging on cagh and cash egunmianls (s managed by the group (hraugh dealing with wall-established
financtal instituhions with high credil ratings.

In crger o calouiate credit loss allowances, mansgement daterming whetner the creait ioss sliowances should be caloutated on
212 manth or on & expectad credll loss basis: This determinalion depands an whether lers has been a significant increase in
the credit nak since inital recogniion. If there has been 3 significant incresse i eredl nsk, than the |pas allowanca je
calculatad bassd on lifslims sxpected crsdil jessas. Il not men the loss sflowance s based on 12 month sxpecied gradi
lpases. Thin detarmination s mads & the and of gach finansal parmd, Thus the basis of the loss alwance for @ specfin
firmancial sssat could charge year on year

I assessing whather the cradit sk on a fnancial assel has increased significantly, the company compares the risk of defaul
ooourrtng on the inancial assst as at the reporting distewith the ek of defaull voourring an that financisl ssset as & the dats 4
inital recognition. In doing 5o, the company contiders reasonable and supporabie information thal is indicative of sgnificant
increasss in cradit sk since (nitisl recognition and that |s avallable withoul undue cost or effort. There is @ rebultable
assumption that the credit fsk onf a financial assat has increased significantly since initlal tecognition whan contractial
payments g mare than 30 deys past due.

For this purpose dafaull is defined as having oceurred I the deblar is in bresch of contractual abligations, ar Il information s
avalable intermally or extemally that suggssts that the debtar unlikely to be able to meet its obiligations. Hawaver, there is a
rebutiable sssumplion thal ihat dafaull does nat oceur lates than when a financial asset s 90 days past due,
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2T, Financial instruments and risk managemant (continued)

II the company doss nod Rve reasonable d@rd supportabla information to ldantify significant increasas i credit fak andiar (o
maagure lifeimeo credit losses when therp has been a signifjcant increasa in credit sk on an mndindual msirumant pasis,
lifetime expecled credll losses are rmoognised on a collective basis, For such purposes, the company groups financial assets
on the basiz al shared cradit risk '

. bype of matrumant,

. industry in which the dabinr oparates, and

«  nature of callateral

A fimancial asset 15 credi-impairad when ong or mors events (hal Have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of lfe financial asset have occurrsd. Evidence thal a financial assel is credil imaared inciudse observable data gbout the the
following svents

«  gignificant ficancia) difficulty of the dabtor

. & breaoh of contract

. itis probabia that the deblot will enter bankruptey

s |hs disappearanca of an actve markst for the hnancial assel besausa of Hinancial dificultiss.

Whears necessary, the assessmenl for a significant Increase |n eredit sk &= made on.a colleciive basis. Managameant typicaily
adapt this Spproach 'what infotmation ralevant to the datermination of cradit sk s ndl available an an individual instromenl
lsval, Often, the only informahon available on indiidual instruments which could indizate a9 increasze in.cradil nsk, s “past dug”
informalion. It iz typieal fhal mare forward looking Information (s generally more readily avallsble on @ colleclive basiz.
Therafore, making the detormination on a zollective:basis; heips o ansure thal cradit loss aliowances ars detsrmined on Iha
basis of expected cradit l0ases kafore ey reach tha point of baing past due. Forward logking, macro-economic information s
applizd on 3 collective basis whan || = readily svailable withaut Undue cast or alfan, When joss allowances are datermined on
a collechive bosis, managamanl detarmines the loss @lowancas by grouping financlal irstuments on e basis of shared credit
risy charactanshcs

Far accounts: recanables which do not conisin @ significant fingnang componant, e loss glowance s determned as (he
expected gradit loszas of the instrumants. For ail othar accounts receivables, IFRS B pormis the detamination of the oredit
Inas gllowance by sither datemmining whathar ihers waz & significant ingrease in credi sk sinca initial recognilion or by always
making uss of expestsd credit losses Managamen! have chosen @8 sn-accounting policy, 1o make use of axpested aradil
joas=s. Mansgement doss thersfore not make he annusl assessmant of whathar the credil risk has increased significanty
sincs initial recognitlon far actounts recelvables, cortract A3ssts or leass recsivables. '

Thie maximum exposure |15 aredil sk |s pressntad in Ihe table Below!

0 2073

Gross Creditlass  Amortised Grass Croditloss  Amartised
CHTYING #llowance coat § far canying allowars et fair

EmioLrit value amount valus
Dabl instruments at far value through' 18 S5.068.171 - 85,068,771 100.B47.855 - T00.B481.8585
olher comprahensive Ihcame _
Accouris and olfier racsivabies 20 BEBOAGIY |6432851) B(,173TER 52724013  (3.801,390) 48,823 83F
Gosh and cash eguivalents 21 18844698 (123.683) 18,720905 435655384 (2B2.242) 453583,146

201,509,388 (5,556,544) 194,952,844 199,431,286  (4,0B3,632) 195,147,624

Refar to Ihe notes specific ta the exposures in tha lable abova, lor addibonal information concerning credil rish,
Liquidity risk

The campany |5 sxposed o Tauidity risk, which s e risk that 1he company wil encounter difficulties In me2ang s obligations
as thay becams dus,

The company mangges (s lguaty nsk by efectively managing (is working capitsl, capital expenditure and cash fiows The
fimaraing requiramants are me! through 2 mbdure of cash generated from operations and long and short lerm barowings
Committed borrowing facilities ors availabls for mesting lguidily reguirements aid depositd ars held 80 central baniding
instititions.
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27. Fimanclal Instrumeants and risk management (continued)

Ther have peen no sgnificant changss in the liowdity rsk mansgemant policies-and processes aince the prior r2poming
penle

The maturity profiie of confractugl cash fiows of nan-darvative finaneial habibbes, and financial assats-hald to mitinate tha rsk,
ara prassalad in (he lollowing table. The cash lows are Undiscountad contraciual ampunts,

2023

|-zss thin 2 1o 5 pEaTs Tatal Carrying

1 yaar amaunt

Mon-currant lizbilities
Lagse liabifities 23 - 42064574 A2064.5T4 42004574
Current liabllities
Tradz and glh=r payabiss 24 74,283 581 - 74,203.581 74,283,581
Laase fiabifities 23 11.374.160 - 11,314 150 11.314_150

85.507,731 42,084,574 127,672,305 127,872,305

2022

|-ass [han 2t 5 years Tatal Carrying

1 y2ar amount

Mon-current labilitios
L=ase lizbilitiga 23 - H3 208 929 57,208 gy 53 208,929
Curret llabllities
Trade and off payablss 24 48015843 - 43015843 48015843
Leass llabilities 23 3274192 - 5,774,197 6,774,192

57,290,035 53,206,928 110,498,964 110,496,964

Forglan currencty risk

ihe epmpany ls sxposad to foreign currancy risk 3w a result of certain transactions and borrowings which are denominated In
foraign zurfencies. Exchangs rafe sxposures ars managed wilhin approved policy paramisters uliliging forsign fdeward
sxchanges conttatls where necessary. The foreign currennies In which the company deals primarily are US Dollars and Euros.

Thers [ave Dean no sanifcan! changes i the foregn guirency rsk mansgeamant policies and procassss since e prior
reparting pariod,

Exposure in Shillings

The nal canying amounts, In Shillings. of ths various exposurss ars dencminated n (ks follawing eurrensies, The amaignis
have bean presentsd in Shillings by convering the forsign corrency amounts at the clesing rate-al the reportng date

Us Dollar expoasure;

Curront assets:
Cash and cash oguivalents 21 3,900 226 35,342
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27, Financial instruments and risk management (continuad)

Current liabilities:

Accounts and olhar paysbles 24 293,728 1,800 588
Mot US Dollar exposure 41,193,951 1,835,928
Exchange rates

Shillings per unit of lorzign currency:

LS Dallar 156450 123.374

Foreign currency sansitivity analyzis

The following Infarmation presents (e sensliwity of the company to an Increass or dacrease in the redpective clrancies i s
sxposad (0. The sensitivity rate is the rale usaed when reporting foralgn currency rsk intemaily 1o ksy management parsonnsl
and represents management's assessmant of the reasonably possible change in fersign sxchange. rales: Tha sansitivity
andlysis includes arly outstanding forelgn currency deramtinalad amounts and adjusts thelr trmnslation at the reporting dalz
Mo changes wore rmade o fhe mothods and assumptions used in the praparalicn of the: sensilivity onalysis compared Lo (he

pravidus raporting petod

Company

At Decambar 31, 2023, Fthe US Dollar axchangs rate had been 10 000% (20220 10.000%) highsr or lower during the patiod,
witfy all otfiar variables held constanl, profit or inss for the year would have bean pstimated st KES - (2022 KES 183 500

highar and KES - (2022 KES (182,592)) lawe.

Intares! rate risk

Fluetustions in interest rales impsct on (e valie of invastmants and financing sctivitiss, giving rise 1o interast rate rlak

There have bean no significant changes in the inlerest rate risk managament policias and processes since the prior repaning

panod

Price risk

The company |5 exposed fo prics ridk because of its invesimimts in sdully instruments which are measured af fair vatua. The
siposure lo price risk on aguity Inwestments s managed through a diversifiad partfalio, ond fhrough the wse of option conlracts

on ralgvant indaxes, whard nocsssany,

Thie aampany is nol sxpoesed ta commodity price Hsl,

There have hean no sgnificant chanigas in the price risk management polisies and processes since the prior reporting penod.

28. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finaneing activities - 2023

Balsncs at 16t Cashflows  Balance at 31

January Decambar
|.eass habilites f2.481.129 (8,102.387) B3 37H. 724

B2481,121 (9102387 53,378,724
Total llabilities from financing activities 52481121 {9,102,397) 53,378,724
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28. Changes In liabilltizs arising from financing activities (conlinusd)
Reconglliation of liabilitles arlsing from financing activities - 2022

Balancs at 18t Caszh Aows Balance:at 3ist

_ Aanuary RBasamber
Laass |iabiliies FA040 118 11,550,597 6248111
TALATIE  (11.560,587) 62481020
Total liabilities from linancing activitiza 74041718  (11,580,597) e2481.121

28. Comparative figures

Whare nacessary, comparative fighires have been adiustad to conlfom with chang=s in preszniation in the cument year
30, Commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for

Properly and equipment - 348,650
Intaragible assets - 14,532 B30

Thare were no other commiimends diring the yoar snded Cecambar 31, 2023
31, Contingencies

Thers yeare Ao contingencies dunng thayear endad Decembear 31 2023,

32. Evenis alter the reporting pariod

The directos are nol aware of any other matorial avan! which acourrsd alter he reparting date and up to the date of direciors
report.
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